
MINUTES 
TOWN OF QUARTZSITE 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 17, 2015, 9:30 AM 

CALL TO ORDER: 9:36 a.m. 

INVOCATION: None 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Led by Council Member Warner 

ROLL CALL: 
Present: Mayor Foster, Vice Mayor Simpson, Council Member Kelley, Council Member 
Warner, Council Member Orgeron, Council Member St. Germain 
Absent: Council Member Davidson 

STAFF PRESENT: Skylor Miller, Town Manager; Oscar Cruz, Assistant Public Works 
Director; Kiki Tunnell, Finance Manager; and Tina Abriani, Town Clerk 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. APPOINTMENT OF A QUARTZSITE POLICE DEPARTMENT LlEUTENANT
Approval to appoint a Quartzsite Police Department Lieutenant, an approved 
vacant position. 

The Mayor moved this agenda item, Item 1, to Administrative Items. 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS: 

2. WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
PRESENTATION - Presentation of information regarding funding options to 
rehabilitate and expand the Wastewater Treatment Plant by Mark Reader, the 
Town Financial Consultant. 

Mark Reader, Financial Advisor from Stifel Public Finance, gave an updated finance 
presentation regarding the wastewater treatment plant. Town Manager Miller said the 
updated picture was positive from a feasibility standpoint. 

Council Member Davidson arrived and took his seat on the dais at 9:39 a.m. 

The presentation included an update on the USDA RD Program. 

Mr. Reader stated the engineers have suggested to the Town that there will be a cost 
increase to complete the project. 

Page I of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minules 



Mr. Reader said the remaining wastewater debt from the 2013 WIFA loan is now 
approximately $600,000 to $700,000. He said this WIFA loan is to be paid back entirely 
from the Wastewater Enterprise Funds. He explained that one of the goals of the Town 
is to repay all of its maintenance and operation expenses and all of the debt service 
associated with the wastewater bond issues over the years, as well as the new one, by 
using rates and charges. 

There are now three obligations, separate bond transactions that are being paid through 
the wastewater system: the 2013 WIFA loan, the 2006 GADA, and the 2014 funding that 
was recently done. 

Mark Reader and Town Manager Miller would like to meet with the USDA RD regarding 
obtaining more grant funds. 

The impact on rates was discussed. The FY 2015-2016 operating revenues for the sewer 
system is approximately $1,160,000. The operating budget for water and wastewater is 
approximately $460,000. After the operating expenses (electricity, payroll, chemicals and 
everything else it takes to operate the plant) are paid, there will be about $700,000 in 
revenues left to pay debt service and build up some cash. 

The Town must borrow $1.5 million from USDA RD for the first Letter of Conditions, and 
the debt service will be approximately $60,000 per year. The interest rate is estimated to 
be 2.125% over 40 years. Due to the increases in the costs of the project, the Town may 
ask USDA RD for another approximately $1.6 million. Depending on grant funding, the 
Town may borrow 75% of the $1.6 million, from USDA RD, which make the debt service 
approximately $50,000 per year to get the additional $1.6 million for the increase in costs 
for the project. This leaves about $130,000 per year after the debt, and operating 
expenses are paid with no rate increases. 

Vice Mayor Simpson asked how much of the original loan amount is for the wastewater 
facility alone and how much is for additional lines for the expansion of the system. 

Skylor Miller replied the original project, as it is currently designed, does not have any 
additional sewer line expansion designed into it. 

He explained that looking at the five-year picture, there is not a significant difference 
between paying for the Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion every year and paying for 
the aggressive on-going maintenance and repair that needs to be done. 

3. OVERVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF THE FY 15-16 BUDGET DRAFT - Review 
and discussion of the FY 15-16 Draft Budget in preparation for presentation 
and approval of a tentative budget. 

The Mayor asked to view the Utility Department Budgets first. 

Town Manager Miller stated that there had been a $50,000 reduction in personnel costs 
from that of previous years. This is due to a significant decrease in personnel and the use 

Page 2 of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 



of shared personnel by bringing the Public Works Department and the Utilities 
Department together. The Water and Wastewater revenues are restricted funds and stay 
within their division. 

The Mayor asked about the income from Water and Wastewater. 

Town Manager Miller showed a comparison of the adopted FY 2014-2015 Budget and 
the proposed FY 2015-2016 budget. 

The Mayor asked how many personnel are in the Salaries and Wages line item in the 
budget and how many are in Public Works. Town Manager Miller listed the positions and 
the funds from which they are paid . Town Manager Miller said there had been a 
systematic review of each staff position. 

Council Member Kelley stated the Town has positioned staff where they are needed so 
that there are no layoffs, no firings and no need to hire part-time staff. 

Vice Mayor Simpson asked if there was a reduction in force. 

Town Manager Miller replied there were two budgeted but unfilled positions, one in 
Utilities and one in Public Works, which were deleted, as there was no need for them due 
to the staffing timeshare. 

The Mayor asked for a look at total expected expenses versus total expected revenues 
received from the Utility Department, Water and Wastewater, to avoid borrowing from 
HURF. Town Manager Miller said there would be $131 ,000 in net revenues, if the Town 
moves forward with the Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion. There is $295,000 
factored in to pay back HURF. 

Town Manager Miller said there is a five-year maintenance plan for the Kofa Water Plant 
in the budget. As part of the five-year plan, $123,000 is planned capital maintenance. 

Council Member Warner asked that someone briefly explain plant operations. 

Oscar Cruz, Assistant Public Works Director and Plant Operator for the water system, 
responded to Council Member Warner's question. He said plant operations start at the 
well head. He stated the big money this year would be the removal and replacement of 
the actual in-ground pump and motor of the Kofa Well. The corrosion maintenance issue 
will be reduced this year because they will upgrade the discharge piping to stainless steel 
instead of regular metal. 

Council Member Davidson asked how long the pumps usually last. 

Oscar Cruz said there would be a loss of gallons per minute at about five years. He said 
so far; the Town has lost a hundred gallons per minute. The pump used to pump 890 and 
now it is 785 due to wear and tear. The pump is six years old now. 

Page 3 of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 



Vice Mayor Simpson asked if a portion of the repayment to HURF is in the Public Works 
Budget. 

Town Manager Miller said the Town's duty is to show a surplus at the end of the year, 
and the auditor moves the surplus money to pay back HURF. He explained that any 
reseNe, regardless of the type of fund it comes from, will go back to HURF. 

The Mayor called for a recess at 10:54 a.m. 

The Mayor called the meeting back to order at 11 :06 a.m. 

APPOINTMENT OF A QUARTZSITE POLICE DEPARTMENT LIEUTENANT -
Approval to appoint a Quartzsite Police Department Lieutenant, an approved 
vacant position. 

Town Manager Miller stated the Chief was employed by the Town on January 1, 2015, 
and has been evaluating the Department. Town Manager Miller said the Chief brought 
the need to restructure the Department to the Council. Town Manager Miller explained it 
could be done within the Department's current operating budget by adding levels of 
accountability, checks and balances, the work product issued, and improved police 
coverage. 

Town Manager Miller said the Lieutenant's position has been open for some time and has 
been advertised on two different occasions. 

Chief Renfro said he inteNiewed four people and selected the best candidate out of the 
four, Mike Ewald . Mike Ewald is already an employee of the Department, so there would 
be no added expenses for a background investigation and so forth. The Chief said he 
would like to move forward with making Mr. Ewald the Lieutenant. 

Council Member Orgeron asked how long Mike Ewald had been with the Department. 

Chief Renfro replied that Mike Ewald had been with the Department since March of 2015 
and is fully qualified, and had been a sergeant at two other agencies having 13 or 14 
years with law enforcement. 

Council Member Warner asked if there would be an increase in salary for Mike Ewald if 
he became a Lieutenant. 

The Chief replied that it would be a pay increase for Mr. Ewald. The budgeted amount for 
the Lieutenant position is $70,500. This would leave an open officer position, the only 
vacant officer position. The Chief stated the Town is looking to send two individuals to the 
academy. 

The Mayor called for a roll call vote. 

Roll Call Vote: Motion Passed (summary: Yes = 5, No = 2, Abstain = 0). 

Page 4 of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 



Yes: Vice Mayor Simpson, Council Member Kelley, Council Member Warner, Council 
Member Orgeron, and Council Member St. Germain. 
No: Mayor Foster, Council Member Davidson. 

The Mayor explained that he voted 'no' because he does not believe the Town should 
hiring a Lieutenant quite yet, because the budget for the Department must be reviewed 
first. 

Council Member Orgeron explained that his initial feelings would be 'no', but he supports 
the Chief, and the Chief is accountable, so he voted yes. 

Council Member Davidson explained his 'no' vote was due to budgetary concerns. 

The meeting continued with the budget discussion. 

Town Manager Miller reviewed Public Works revenue. He explained there is a HURF 
reserve, and it is not fully expended every year. Any surplus in unrestricted funds, even 
enterprise funds, will be used to pay back the HURF debt. 

There was a discussion of the Transit Budget. Town Manager Miller stated the Town will 
move forward on the assumption the Town will receive 5311 Public Transportation 
Program revenue from ADOT. If the Town does not receive the 5311 revenue, the Town 
will operate as if it were a 5310 Program (elderly and disabled riders). 

Town Manager Miller reviewed the Cemetery Services Budget. He said the revenue 
sources are sales of plots and donations. Capital projects are landscaping projects and 
the installation of a fence along Kofa. 

The Mayor moved to adjourn for lunch, and Council Member Warner seconded the 
motion. The vote was unanimous. Motion Passed. 

The Mayor announced the meeting would reconvene at 12:45 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT: 11 :30 a.m. 

The Mayor called the meeting back to order at 12:48 p.m. 

ROLL CALL: 
Present: Mayor Foster, Vice Mayor Simpson, Council Member Kelley, Council Member 
Warner, Council Member Orgeron, Council Member Davidson. 
Absent: Council Member St. Germain. 

Town Manager Miller continued the review of the Cemetery Budget. 

The Mayor asked for information regarding Salaries and Wages for the Cemetery. 

Council Member St. Germain took his seat on the dais at 12:51 p.m. 

Page 5 of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 



The Mayor asked for the total revenue package for the year before the Council starts to 
spend the General Fund. 

Town Manager Miller stated there is an expected $1,165,000 from City Sales Tax and, 
based on a recent court order, $60,000 from recaptured fees. There is an expected 
$40,000 in revenue from building permits and $10,000 in business licenses. 

There was a discussion of the fees for business licenses, vendor permits, vehicle licenses 
and classification of business licenses. Town Manager Miller advised the Council that the 
Town Attorneys are looking into creating a permit class for the crafters. 

Town Manager Miller added $80,000 of revenue from the APS Franchise Fees; $351,275 
from State Sales Tax; $442,710 from Urban Revenue Sharing; $325,436 from Vehicle 
License Tax; $90,000 from Municipal Court Fines; and Miscellaneous Revenue. 

The Mayor asked about revenue from the lease of the cell tower and Town Manager Miiler 
said he will copy the agreement and provide it to the Council. 

Town Manager Miller stated that with all of the Town's combined revenues, including 
donations, locally generated revenues and state shared revenues, the Town projects 
there will be $2,771,466 in general revenue and restricted funds. 

Town Manager Miller said the Town will receive grant revenue: $8,000 for the Library; 
$85,000 for the Police Department, and assuming the Town is moving forward with the 
5311 Public Transportation, there will be $202,483 for Transit. 

Town Manager Miller reviewed the Park Services Budget. 

There was a discussion of watering the Town's two fields, the utility field, and the ball 
field. 

Town Manager Miller explained the budget is the Council's policy, and when the budget 
is on the next agenda, it will be a tentative budget that will need to be adopted. He asked 
that Council communicate to him what the Council Members want to be added, removed 
and/or modified in the proposed budget before them. 

Town Manager Miller asked the Council to give him direction regarding the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. He asked if he should put $200,000 in the budget for next year for 
maintenance and upkeep of the status quo, or if he should take out $200,000 so that next 
year the Town starts paying on a rehabilitation and improvement project. 

There was more discussion regarding watering the Town's two fields. The Council's 
consensus was that the baseball field should remain green, and the utility/football field 
should not be watered. 

Page 6 of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 



There was a discussion of the Park staff, the Park's service garage, maintenance area, 
and the installation of solar lighting. 

Town Manager Miller reviewed the Services Budget. Court fines, FARE revenue, staffing 
and projected proposed budget savings were discussed. 

Town Manager Miller said he will bring back a RFQ for a prosecutor and public defender 
to the Council before they are advertised. 

Council Member Davidson asked if an attorney needs to be at every meeting. 

Town Manager Miller said it is a good practice to have an attorney in attendance at the 
Council meetings. He noted an attorney does not attend every meeting and does not 
charge for travel. 

The Legal Services Budget was reviewed next. Town Manager Miller discussed the 
significant reduction in costs since the FY 2012-2013 Budget that included legal staff. He 
pointed out a 20% reduction in the proposed budget, which allocates $140,000 for legal 
services. 

The Town Council Budget was reviewed. Personnel costs, travel , lodging, and training 
were listed. The Council decided to fund the Youth Council's attendance of the AZ 
League's Youth Council Program and to pay for a chaperone. 

Capital Outlay included $6,600 budgeted for seven tablets and associated peripherals. 

The Mayor asked if any Council Member had any reservation regarding going paperless 
and using iPads. The Council verified the Town Manager will provide training and help in 
learning how to use the iPads and the new software. 

Town Manager Miller went over the Administrative Services Budget including accounting 
services, audit services, increased salaries, and changed allocations. 

Vice Mayor Simpson asked what happens to funds in Other Services if they are not 
expended. 

Town Manager Miller replied that everything resets to zero on July 1, 2015. 

The Mayor asked that a Budgeted versus Actual report be supplied to the Council. He 
asked that it be delivered to the Council at the end of each Quarter for their review. 

The Mayor asked what the result is when next fiscal year's budgeted expenses are 
compared to next fiscal year's $2,771,000 total expected revenue. Town Manager Miller 
said he could provide the answer after a five minute recess. 

Town Manager Miller reviewed the Water and Wastewater Budget. He said the Town is 
looking at an additional $229,000 annually in long-term debt. He said in the proposed 

Page 7 of9 
0617 15 Quartzs ite Town Counci l Special Meeting Minutt:s 



budget there is $200,000 in first-year capital repairs to address some of the long-standing 
issues. He said if the Town begins the rehabilitation expansion project of the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, $200,000 can be removed from the Wastewater Budget immediately. 

There was discussion regarding expanding the wastewater system. 

The Mayor asked for a report of the last five years showing where every dollar went that 
was spent on the Wastewater Treatment Plant. He said he and the people want to know 
the engineering costs spent on the plant. 

There was a discussion of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation and Expansion 
Project. 

Council Member SI. Germain asked for the timeframe for the Council's 'yes' or 'no' 
regarding moving forward with the project. 

Town Manager Miller replied that he needed to know how to factor the handling of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant into the budget as soon as possible. He said he would like 
the Council to tell him if he should budget for a Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion 
or for a repair program because different line items are involved in each scenario. 

Town Manager Miller explained there is $200,000 in Capital Improvement/Repairs in the 
budget for this year. 

He said if the repairs do not need to be done because the Council is moving forward with 
the loan, then the $200,000 for repairs can be taken out of the budget or the money can 
be reallocated for a project for a system expansion. 

There was a discussion of surplus monies from Utilities in the future, repayment to HURF 
and rate structures. 

Council Member St. Germain said in the future everyone should be on the Town water 
and sewer systems, not just water or just sewer. There was a discussion of water and 
wastewater accounts, capacity and expansion. 

There was a review of water and wastewater issues that need to be addressed. 

Council Member St. Germain said he thinks the Town should proceed with the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion and to leave the $200,000 that was allocated for 
repairs in the budget and allocate it to expand the sewer system. 

Four Council Members said they wanted to move forward with the expansion and Town 
Manager Miller said he has direction for the tentative budget. 

Council Member Orgeron moved to adjourn, and Council Member Warner seconded 
the motion. The vote was unanimous. Motion Passed. 

Page 8 of9 
061715 Quartzsite Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 



ADJOURNMENT: 2:23 p.m. 

CERTIFICATION: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the 
minutes of the Special Meeting of June 17, 2015, of the Town Council of Quartzsite, 
Arizona, held on June 17, 2015. 

I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was 
present. 

DATED this Wh day of July 2015 

Tina M. Abriani, Town Clerk 
On behalf of the Common Council 

Approved: 

I?~ 
Ed Foster, Mayor 

Page 9 of9 
06 1715 Quartzsite 'rowll Council Special Meeting Minu\es 


